
1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Council Meeting 
 

Council Offices 
White Cliffs Business Park 

Dover 
 
 

Wednesday, 20 October 2021 
 
 
 

Summons and Agenda 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Nadeem Aziz 

 Chief Executive 

 
 

Public Document Pack



2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



3 

 
 Democratic Services 

White Cliffs Business Park 
 
Dover 
Kent  CT16 3PJ 
 
Telephone: (01304) 821199 
Fax: (01304) 872452 
DX: 6312 
Minicom: (01304) 820115 
Website: www.dover.gov.uk 
e-mail: democraticservices 
 @dover.gov.uk 

 
 
 

12 October 2021 
 
 
 
To the Members of the Council,  
 
You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of the COUNCIL to be held in the Council 
Chamber at these Offices on Wednesday 20 October 2021 at 6.00 pm for the transaction of 
the business set out in the Agenda.    
 
 
 
 
 
Chief Executive  
 

Members of the Council: 
 
M D Conolly (Chairman) 
D Hannent (Vice-Chairman) 
J S Back 
T J Bartlett 
M Bates 
D G Beaney 
S H Beer 
E A Biggs 
T A Bond 
P M Brivio 
S S Chandler 
 

N J Collor 
D G Cronk 
D R Friend 
J P Haste 
D A Hawkes 
M F Hibbert 
S J Jones 
P D Jull 
L A Keen 
N S Kenton 
S C Manion 
 

K Mills 
D P Murphy 
O C de R Richardson 
M Rose 
C A Vinson 
R S Walkden 
P Walker 
H M Williams 
C F Woodgate 
C D Zosseder 
 
 

 
AGENDA 
 

1    APOLOGIES  (Page 7) 
 

 To receive any apologies for absence. 
 

2    MINUTES   
 

 To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 21 July 2021 and 15 September 
2021 (to follow). 
 

3    DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  (Page 8) 



4 

 

 To receive any declarations of interest from Members in respect of business to be 
transacted on the agenda.  
 

4    ANNOUNCEMENTS  (Page 9) 
 

 To receive any announcements from the Chairman of the Council, the Leader of the 
Council, Members of the Cabinet or the Head of Paid Service. 
 

5    LEADER'S TIME  (Page 10) 
 

 To receive an oral report at the meeting from the Leader (and Cabinet) on the 
business of the Executive or on any topic or subject that it is felt should be brought 
to the attention of the Council. 
 
In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 10 (Leader’s Time): 
 

(a) The Leader (and Cabinet) shall have up to 15 minutes to make within this 
report any statements that they wish on any topic or subject that they feel 
should be drawn to the attention of the Council.  

(b) The Leader of the Main Opposition Group (or their nominee) shall be 
allowed up to 10 minutes to respond. 

(c) The Leader of the Council shall be allowed up to 5 minutes to exercise a 
right of reply (or 25% of the time given to the Opposition Group Leader(s), 
whichever is the greatest).  

 

6    SEAT ALLOCATION AND GROUP APPOINTMENTS  (Page 11) 
 

 To receive from Group Leaders any changes to seat allocations or appointments. 
 
(Note: Any changes must be within the approved allocation of seats to political 
groups in accordance with the political balance rules (where applicable).) 
 

7    QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC  (Pages 12 - 13) 
 

 To receive answers in respect of questions from the public to Members of the 
Executive asked in accordance with Rule 11 of the Council Procedure Rules. 
 

(a) Questions will be asked in the order in which notice of them was received, 
except that the Chairman may group together similar questions. 

(b) The period for questions by the public shall be limited so that no further 
questions shall be put after the elapse of 15 minutes from the 
commencement of the first question. 

(c) A maximum of three minutes is allowed for the each question to be read.  

(d) A questioner who has put a question in person may also put one 
supplementary question without notice to the member who has replied to his 
or her original question. A supplementary question must arise directly out of 
the original question or the reply.  

(e) Afterwards, any other Member at the Chairman's discretion may speak for 
up to two minutes on a question or reply. 

 
Questions from the Public 



5 

 
The questions are set out in the order received in the agenda papers. 
 

8    WISE PRESENTATION   
 

 To receive a presentation from Mr John Dunne of Waste Investigation Support and 
Enforcement Limited (WISE).  
 

9    REVIEW OF STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY - LICENSING ACT 2003  
(Pages 14 - 36) 
 

 To consider the attached report of the Head of Regulatory Services. 
 

10    BROADCAST OF COUNCIL MEETINGS   
 

 To consider the report of the Monitoring Officer (to follow). 
 

11    QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS  (Pages 37 - 39) 
 

 Up to 60 minutes is allowed for this part of the meeting unless extended by the 
Chairman of the Council or on a motion moved, duly seconded and approved by the 
Council.  Members may ask one supplementary question in addition to their original 
question. 
 
Members may ask one supplementary question in addition to their original question. 
 
The questions received are set out in the order received in the agenda papers. 
 

12    MOTIONS  (Pages 40 - 41) 
 

 Motions for which notice has been given are listed on the agenda in the order in 
which notice was received, unless the Member giving notice states, in writing, that 
they propose to move it at a later meeting or withdraw it. 
 
If a Motion set out in the agenda is not moved by the Member who gave notice 
thereof it shall, unless postponed by consent of the Council, be treated as 
withdrawn and shall not be moved without fresh notice. 
 
Up to 60 minutes is allowed for this part of the meeting unless extended by the 
Chairman of Council on a motion moved, duly seconded and approved by the 
Council.   
 
The Motions received are set out in the agenda papers. 
 

13    URGENT BUSINESS TIME  (Page 42) 
 

 To consider any other items deemed by the Chairman of the Council to be urgent in 
accordance with the Local Government Act 1972. 
 

 

Access to Meetings and Information 
 

 Members of the public are welcome to attend meetings of the Council, its 
Committees and Sub-Committees.  You may remain present throughout them except 
during the consideration of exempt or confidential information. 



6 

 

 All meetings are held at the Council Offices, Whitfield unless otherwise indicated on 
the front page of the agenda.  There is disabled access via the Council Chamber 
entrance and a disabled toilet is available in the foyer.  In addition, there is a PA 
system and hearing loop within the Council Chamber. 

 

 Agenda papers are published five clear working days before the meeting.  
Alternatively, a limited supply of agendas will be available at the meeting, free of 
charge, and all agendas, reports and minutes can be viewed and downloaded from 
our website www.dover.gov.uk.  Minutes will be published on our website as soon as 
practicably possible after each meeting.  All agenda papers and minutes are 
available for public inspection for a period of six years from the date of the meeting.   

 

 If you require any further information about the contents of this agenda or your right 
to gain access to information held by the Council please contact Rebecca Brough, 
Democratic & Corporate Services Manager, democraticservices@dover.gov.uk, 
telephone: (01304) 872304 or email: democraticservices@dover.gov.uk for details. 

 

Large print copies of this agenda can be supplied on request. 



APOLOGIES 

 

To receive any apologies for absence. 

7

Agenda Item No 1



Declarations of Interest 

 
 

Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI) 

Where a Member has a new or registered DPI in a matter under consideration they must 

disclose that they have an interest and, unless the Monitoring Officer has agreed in advance 

that the DPI is a 'Sensitive Interest', explain the nature of that interest at the meeting. The 

Member must withdraw from the meeting at the commencement of the consideration of any 

matter in which they have declared a DPI and must not participate in any discussion of, or 

vote taken on, the matter unless they have been granted a dispensation permitting them to 

do so. If during the consideration of any item a Member becomes aware that they have a 

DPI in the matter they should declare the interest immediately and, subject to any 

dispensations, withdraw from the meeting. 

Other Significant Interest (OSI) 

Where a Member is declaring an OSI they must also disclose the interest and explain the 

nature of the interest at the meeting. The Member must withdraw from the meeting at the 

commencement of the consideration of any matter in which they have declared a OSI and 

must not participate in any discussion of, or vote taken on, the matter unless they have been 

granted a dispensation to do so or the meeting is one at which members of the public are 

permitted to speak for the purpose of making representations, answering questions or giving 

evidence relating to the matter. In the latter case, the Member may only participate on the 

same basis as a member of the public and cannot participate in any discussion of, or vote 

taken on, the matter and must withdraw from the meeting in accordance with the Council's 

procedure rules. 

Voluntary Announcement of Other Interests (VAOI) 

Where a Member does not have either a DPI or OSI but is of the opinion that for 

transparency reasons alone s/he should make an announcement in respect of a matter 

under consideration, they can make a VAOI. A Member declaring a VAOI may still remain at 

the meeting and vote on the matter under consideration. 

Note to the Code:  

Situations in which a Member may wish to make a VAOI include membership of outside 

bodies that have made representations on agenda items; where a Member knows a person 

involved, but does not have a close association with that person; or where an item would 

affect the well-being of a Member, relative, close associate, employer, etc. but not his/her 

financial position. It should be emphasised that an effect on the financial position of a 

Member, relative, close associate, employer, etc OR an application made by a Member, 

relative, close associate, employer, etc would both probably constitute either an OSI or in 

some cases a DPI. 

8

Agenda Item No 3



ANNOUNCEMENTS 

To receive any announcements from the Chairman of the Council, the Leader of the Council, 
Members of the Cabinet or the Head of Paid Service. 
 

9

Agenda Item No 4



LEADER'S TIME 

 

To receive an oral report at the meeting from the Leader (and Cabinet) on the business of the 
Executive or on any topic or subject that it is felt should be brought to the attention of the 
Council. 

In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 10 (Leader’s Time): 

(a) The Leader (and Cabinet) shall have up to 15 minutes to make within this report any 
statements that they wish on any topic or subject that they feel should be drawn to the 
attention of the Council.  

(b) The Leader of the Main Opposition Group (or their nominee) shall be allowed up to 10 
minutes to respond. 

(c) The Leader of the Council shall be allowed up to 5 minutes to exercise a right of reply 
(or 25% of the time given to the Opposition Group Leader(s), whichever is the 
greatest).  
 

 

10

Agenda Item No 5



AGENDA ITEM 6: SEAT ALLOCATION AND GROUP APPOINTMENTS 

 

To receive from Group Leaders any changes to seat allocations or appointments. 

(Note:  Any changes must be within the approved allocation of seats to political groups in 

accordance with the political balance rules (where applicable).) 

11

Agenda Item No 6



Questions Raised on Notice by Members of the Public 

 

(a) To the Executive 

 

 In accordance with Rule 11 of the Council Procedure Rules, notice was given by a 

member of the public to ask the following question:  

 

(1) Benedict Kemp will ask the Leader of the Council, Councillor T J 

Bartlett: 

“Recent polling by various sources suggest the people of Kent are interested 

in or serious about an independent jurisdiction being created in Kent. In light 

of this, is the leader of the council and the leaders of the council interested in 

or serious about the prospects of an independent Kent? First and foremost 

would be an independent financial system, which could bring a huge 

opportunity for the people of Kent.” 

(2) Graham Wanstall will ask the Leader of the Council, Councillor T J 

Bartlett: 

“Regarding H.M The Queen’s Platinum Jubilee next year having earlier been 

confronted with a lack of interest for a name change within Dover, I have 

considered this further and after consulting others propose new namings. The 

Market Square is to undergo changes so we have an excellent opportunity to 

mark the Queen’s special jubilee naming it “Queen Elizabeth II Square” which 

I now propose to you. When we met at the subway earlier this year I proposed 

we call the subway “Captain Tom Moore” and the steps “Prince Philip Steps” 

to reflect the fact H.R.H. gave so many youngsters a step up in life. You 

supported both ideas! Now we know Captain Tom’s family do not want his 

name to be used I propose we call the subway and steps “Prince Phillip Way” 

as we did with “Dame Vera Lynn Way” which proved popular. With Queen 

Elizabeth II Square nearby the Queen and the Duke would be remembered 

side by side as they were for so long in life. I ask that Dover District Council 

demonstrate civic leadership by permanently marking the Queen’s Platinum 

Jubilee as these proposals are appropriate to do and popular with the public 

for our two much loved and respected royals. God save the Queen!” 

(3) John Hayter will ask the Portfolio Holder for Transport, Licensing and 

Regulatory Services, Councillor M Bates: 

“The introduction of an additional emission charge when renewing a residents 

Parking Permit “is to incentivise the resident with purchasing a low emitting 

vehicle”. 

My question is:- If the resident hasn’t  the money to purchase a low emitting 

vehicle can you explain how this extra premium on their Parking Permit is an 

incentive for him/her to do so?” 

12

Agenda Item No 7



 

(4) Sarah Gleave will ask the Portfolio Holder for Finance, Governance, 

Digital and Climate Change, Councillor C A Vinson: 

“With Dept for Transport taking the rail franchise off Southeastern Railways, 

(due to their financial mistakes over £25million of public funds), and EK rail 

unions calling for Southeastern railways  to be subject to wider fraud 

investigation, should DDC ask DfT for the government’s in-house rail operator 

to freeze or cut local rail fares in East Kent to encourage travelers in this 

district to shift to rail from road given the problems with petrol supplies, the 

need to decarbonise commuting and the need to relieve road congestion in 

Dover district?”    

(5) Emma Healey will ask the Portfolio Holder for Finance, Governance, 

Digital and Climate Change, Councillor C A Vinson: 

“Why have Dover district’s many climate concerned citizens, not seen DDC 

take urgently needed large-scale actions on the climate and nature crises, 

given that is now 2 years since DDC declared a climate emergency; by 'large-

scale actions' I refer to bringing the net zero target for the whole district 

forward from 2050; implementing the recommendations from South East 

Climate Alliance* including home-insulation; and implementing the 

recommendations in the KCC report ‘Natural solutions to climate change in 

Kent’?” 

In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 11.7, the Chairman will invite the 

questioner to put the question exactly as submitted to the Member named in the 

notice. If a questioner who has submitted a written question is unable to be present, 

they may ask the Chairman to put the question on their behalf. The Chairman may 

ask the question on the questioner's behalf, indicate that a written reply will be given 

or decide, in the absence of the questioner, that the question will not be dealt with. 

In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 11.8, a questioner who has put a 

question in person may also put one supplementary question without notice to the 

member who has replied to his or her original question. A supplementary question 

must arise directly out of the original question or the reply.  

A maximum of three minutes shall be allowed for the question to be read. The period 

for questions by the public shall be limited so that no further question shall be put 

after the elapse of 15 minutes from the commencement of the first question. 

Any questions which cannot be dealt with during public question time, either because 

of lack of time or because of the non-attendance of the member to whom it was to be 

put, will be dealt with by a written answer. 

13



Dover District Council 2  

 
 
 

 

Subject: REVIEW OF STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY - LICENSING 
ACT 2003 

 

Meeting and Date: Council – 20 October 2021 

Report of: Diane Croucher, Head of Regulatory Services 

Classification: Unrestricted 
 

Purpose of the report:    To consult on the Council’s Licensing Policy as part of the 5 yearly 
review. 

 

 
Recommendation: That the Council approve the draft Statement of Licensing Policy and 

authorise a period of formal consultation from 1 November until      28 
November 2021 in accordance with the statutory requirements 

 
 

1. Summary 

By virtue of section 5 of the Licensing Act 2003, the licensing authority is required to 
publish a Statement of Licensing Policy (The Licensing Policy) and that policy must be 
reviewed every five years. The Policy was last reviewed during 2015 and came into 
effect in January 2016. This review is late due to the Covid 19 pandemic, so is now 
being reviewed in order that it can come into force in January 2022. 

2. Introduction and Background 

The Policy remains unchanged. It is amended only where dates required updating. 
 

Before determining its policy, the licensing authority must consult the persons listed 
in section 5(3) of the 2003 Act: 

 

 The chief officer of police for the area; 

 The fire and rescue authority for the area; 

 Each local authority’s Director of Public Health for an area any part of which is 
in the licensing authority’s area; 

 Persons/bodies representative of local premises licence holders; 

 Persons/bodies representative of local club premises certificate holders; 

 Persons/bodies representative of local personal licence holders; and 

 Persons/bodies representative of businesses and residents in its area. 
 

In addition to consulting the statutory consultees, it is also intended that the general 
public will be consulted by placing the draft document on the Dover District Council 
website. In addition, the Council intends to consult with the bodies listed at appendix B 
of the draft statement of licensing policy. 

 
It is therefore requested that Council authorise the draft statement of policy to enable 
the consultation to be undertaken. It is intended that the consultation will run from 1 
November until 28 November 2021. Full account will be taken of the responses to 

14

Agenda Item No 9



Dover District Council 2  

the consultation and the statement of licensing policy will come back before 
full  Council at its meeting on 26 January 2022. 

 
3. Identification of Options 
 

3.1 Option 1 – to approve the draft Licensing Policy, for  a period of consultation. 
 

3.2 Option 2 – to approve a period of consultation on the draft Licensing Policy, with 
amendments as suggested by members. 

 

3.3 Option 3 – to resolve to maintain the current Licensing Policy without consultation. 
 

4. Evaluation of Options 
 

4.1 Option 1 – to approve the draft Licensing Policy, for                a period of consultation. This 
is the preferred option as it complies fully with the legislation and accords with 
the Council’s policy on community involvement. 

 

4.2 Option 2 – to approve a period of consultation on the draft Licensing Policy, with 
amendments as suggested by members. This option is appropriate should 
members wish to make amendments to the draft document. 

 

4.3 Option 3 – to resolve to maintain the current Licensing Policy without 
consultation. This option does not meet the statutory requirements under the 
Licensing Act 2003. 

 

5. Appendices 
 

Appendix 1 – Proposed revised Statement of Licensing Policy.  
Please note that Appendices A and B of the policy will be updated with recent data 
prior to consultation. 
 

6     Climate Change and Environmental Implications 

None 

7 Corporate Implications  

7.1  Comment from Finance (linked to the MTFP): The Finance Section has been 
consulted on this report and have no further comments to make. 

 
7.2  Comment from the Solicitor to the Council: The Head of Governance has been 

consulted during the preparation of this report and has no further comment to make. 
 
7.3 Comment from the Equalities Officer: Whilst the report does not specifically highlight 

any equality implications, consideration has been given to the protection of children 
from harm. The report also refers to consultation with a number of groups. In 
discharging their duties members are required to comply with the public sector 
equality duty as set out in Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2010/15/section/149    

 
8. Background Papers 

 

None. 

Contact Officer: Rebecca Pordage, Licensing Manager 

15

https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.legislation.gov.uk%2Fukpga%2F2010%2F15%2Fsection%2F149&data=04%7C01%7CRebecca.Pordage%40DOVER.GOV.UK%7C56df0409137f42b3912c08d98d4acffe%7C97d0cb53199d4c70a001375e8c953735%7C0%7C0%7C637696174714786732%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=Sq2NvONGZzJY11CXOsBf2KFgfsNg7rTlrZKOrgu2TvM%3D&reserved=0


1 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Statement of 
Licensing Policy 

Approved under the 
Licensing Act 2003 

 
January 2022 

16



2 
 

CONTENTS 

 
 

1. Introduction 
2. Licensing Objectives 
3. Prevention of Crime and Disorder 
4. Public Safety 
5. Prevention of Public Nuisance 
6. Protection of Children from Harm 

 
 
 
 
Appendix A The District of Dover – Key Statistics  
Appendix B List of Consultees 

Appendix C Other relevant Strategies and Policies 

17



3 
 

ALL applications will be considered on their merits, as well as against the relevant 
policy and statutory framework. 

 

1.0 INTRODUCTION  
 

1.1 Dover District Council is the Licensing Authority under the Licensing Act 2003. The 
Licensing Authority is responsible for granting premises licences, club premises 
certificates, temporary events notices and personal licences in the District in respect 
of the sale and/or supply of alcohol. The Licensing Authority also licences the provision 
of regulated entertainment and late night refreshment. 

 

1.2 The 2003 Act requires the Licensing Authority to carry out its various licensing functions 
to promote the following four licensing objectives: 

 

 the prevention of crime and disorder 

 public safety 

 the prevention of public nuisance 

 the protection of children from harm 
 

1.3 The 2003 Act further requires that the Council publish a ‘Statement of Licensing Policy’ 
that sets out the policies the Licensing Authority will generally apply to promote the 
licensing objectives when making decisions on applications made under the Act. 

 

1.4 The aims of this Statement of licensing policy, in line with the four licensing objectives, 
are to: 

 

(a) help build and maintain a safe and prosperous society that properly balances 
the rights of individuals and their communities; 

(b) the introduction of more focused legislation and proportionate enforcement to 
give businesses greater freedom and flexibility to meet their customers’ 
expectations; 

(c) the encouragement of more family friendly premises catering for all age groups; 
(d) develop a thriving cultural mix of live music, dancing and theatre; 
(e) protection of local residents from anti social behaviour and disturbance; 
(f) greater choice for tourists and visitors as to where and when they can 

spend their leisure time; 
(g) encourage an early evening and night time economy which is viable and 

sustainable; 
(h) the reduction of alcohol misuse and the consequential effects of that misuse; 

(i) the regeneration of areas and employment opportunities that a thriving 
and safe night time economy can bring. 

 
1.5 This ‘Statement of Licensing Policy under the Licensing Act 2003’ has been prepared 

in accordance with the provisions of the 2003 Act and having regard to the Guidance 
issued under Section 182 of the Act. 

 

1.6 Where it is necessary to depart from the guidance - either in this policy or at any other 
time - the Licensing Authority will give clear and cogent reasons for doing so. The 
Licensing Authority shall endeavour to work with other licensing authorities (particularly 
where licensing authorities' boundaries meet) to ensure that a consistent approach is 
taken in licensing matters whilst respecting the differing needs of individual communities. 

 
1.7 When assessing applications, the Licensing Authority must be satisfied that the 

measures proposed in the applicant’s operating schedule aim, as far as possible, to 
meet the licensing objectives. 

18



4 
 

1.8 However, it should be recognised that this policy covers a wide variety of premises and 
activities carried on within them including theatres, cinemas, restaurants, pubs, 
nightclubs, private members’ clubs, village halls and community centres, as well as off-
licences, fast food outlets, late night cafes etc. For this reason, this policy cannot detail 
all the factors that influence the achievement of the licensing objectives nor can this 
policy detail all the control measures that may be appropriate in any given 
circumstances. 

 

1.9 The Section 182 Guidance requires that the holder of a premises licence, club premises 
certificate or temporary events notice work in partnership with the Licensing Authority 
to actively promote the licensing objectives. In respect of each of the four licensing 
objectives therefore, applicants will need to satisfy the Licensing Authority that suitable 
and sufficient measures, as detailed in their operating schedule, will be implemented 
and maintained, relevant to the individual style and characteristics of their premises and 
events. Reference will need to be made as to whether additional measures will be taken 
on a permanent basis or specific occasion such as when a special event or promotion 
is planned, which is intended to, or likely to attract, larger audiences. Applicants should 
be aware that, whilst the operating schedule does not form an integral part of any 
premises licence or club premises certificate, the Licensing Authority may impose such 
conditions to the licence or certificate as are reasonably consistent with the operating 
schedule. These conditions will form part of the premises licence or club premises 
certificate. 

 
1.10 When considering applications, the Licensing Authority will have regard to this Policy, 

the Licensing Act 2003, particularly the Licensing Objectives and Guidance issued 
under Section 182 of the Act, and any supporting regulations that may from time to time 
be made. It will also seek proper integration with local crime prevention, planning, 
transport, employment and cultural strategies. To this end, the Licensing Authority may 
provide reports to the Planning Committee on the situation regarding licensed premises 
in the area and arrangements may be made for the Licensing Authority to receive reports 
on the needs of the local tourist economy and the cultural strategy for the area to ensure 
that these are reflected in their considerations. Care will be taken to ensure that only 
necessary, proportionate and reasonable licensing conditions are imposed. 

 

1.11 The Policy does not undermine the rights of any person to apply under the 2003 Act for 
a variety of permissions and have the application considered on its individual merits. 
Such considerations will be in the context of the relevant policy and statutory framework. 

1.12 The Policy does not override the right of any person to make representations on any 
application or seek a review of a licence or certificate where they are permitted to do so 
under the 2003 Act. 

 
1.13 In formulating this policy the Council has had regard to the provisions of the Human 

Rights Act 1998. This Act places a duty on public authorities to protect the rights of 
individuals in a variety of circumstances, and to balance those rights against the rights 
of persons trading in licensable activities and to achieve proportionality. The Council 
has also had regard to the Equality Act 2010, the Gambling Act 2005 and Section 17, 
Crime and Disorder Act 1998. 

 

1.14 Applicants and those making representation in respect of applications to the Licensing 
Authority have a right of appeal to the Magistrates’ Court against the decisions of the 
Licensing Authority in accordance with the terms of the 2003 Act. 

 

1.15 The Licensing Authority recognises that the object of licensing is to maintain appropriate 
control of licensed premises, qualifying clubs, temporary events and the people who 
manage them or hold personal licences within the terms of the 2003 Act. 

19



5 
 

1.16 Longer licensing hours with regard to the sale of alcohol are an important strategy to 
ensure that the concentration of customers leaving premises simultaneously is avoided. 

 

1.17 Where any party makes relevant representations, the Licensing Authority will seek to 
make objective judgements as to whether conditions may need to be attached to a 
licence, or certificate to secure achievement of the licensing objectives. Any such 
conditions will primarily focus on the direct impact of the activities taking place at 
licensed premises on those attending the premises and members of the public living, 
working or otherwise engaged in normal activity in the vicinity and will cover issues 
that are reasonably within the control of individual licensees. 

 

1.18 When considering any conditions, the Licensing Authority acknowledges that the 
licensing function is not the only mechanism for the general control of the anti-social 
behaviour of individuals once they are outside the vicinity of licensed premises and 
beyond the direct control of the licensee of any premises concerned. Therefore, other 
mechanisms may be utilised, where appropriate, to tackle unruly or unlawful behaviour 
of patrons when beyond the control of premises. These include: 

 

 Partnership working with the Kent Police (and other agencies as appropriate) 
to promote enforcement of the law, including disorder and antisocial behaviour, 
and the issuing of fixed penalty notices. 

 Powers to designate parts of the area as places where alcohol may not be 
consumed publicly. Large areas of the District are already covered by bye- 
laws and Designated Public Places Orders controlling drinking in the streets 
and other public places. 

 Partnership working with businesses, transport operators and other parts of 
the Council to create a safe and clean environment. 

 

1.19 As part of its overall policy the Licensing Authority expects every holder of a licence 
or Temporary Event Notice to be responsible for minimising the impact of their activities 
and anti-social behaviour by their patrons within the vicinity of their premises. The 
holders of licences under the 2003 Act should be aware that they might be responsible 
for the actions of their patrons if such actions occur on the premises, directly outside the 
premises or sufficiently close to their premises to provide a direct causal link. 

 

1.20 A key aim of the licensing policy is to assist licence holders to maintain a safe and family 
friendly environment in this Local Authority Area. It may be that conditions that would 
be relevant in the town and city centres may not be appropriate in rural areas. However 
each application will be considered on its individual merits. 

 

1.21 Further, when the Licensing Authority is considering any application, it must avoid 
duplication with other regulatory regimes, (e.g. health and safety at work, environmental 
protection, disability discrimination, the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005, 
so far as possible. 

 

1.22 The licensing regime is not intended to be used to achieve outcomes that have been or 
could be achieved by other legislation. In particular, its licensing functions will be 
discharged separately from its functions as the Local Planning Authority. The Licensing 
Authority anticipates compliance with other statutory regimes in particular those relating 
to public safety. 

 

Licences and planning permission 
 

1.23 The use of any licensed premises or places may be subject to planning controls. 
There are several key differences between licensing and planning control. 

20



6 
 

1.24 Licensing is concerned with the fitness of the operator and detailed issues concerning 
the operation and management of the premises that are not addressed by the planning 
process that relates to the use of the premises. Applicants will be requested to check 
specifically with the Planning Department for confirmation of the action that they should 
take in respect of planning matters. 

 

1.25 It is anticipated, in general, that the grant or variation of planning permission would 
be resolved before a licence application is made. Provisional statements may be treated 
differently. 

 

1.26 The Licensing Committee may refuse to grant a licence following representations from 
the local planning authority if the activity sought to be licensed would amount to an 
unlawful use of the premises or a failure to actively promote the licensing objectives. 

 

1.27 It will be for the applicant to demonstrate any special circumstances to justify a 
departure from this policy in the face of representations from the local planning 
authority. 

 

1.28 With the exception of the approval and review of its Licensing Policy, decisions on 
licensing matters will be taken in accordance with a published and approved scheme of 
delegation aimed at underlining the principles of timely, efficient and effective decision-
making. 

 

Cumulative Impact of a concentration of Licensed Premises 
 

1.29 "Cumulative impact" is not mentioned specifically in the 2003 Act but means the 
potential impact on the promotion of the licensing objectives of a significant number of 
licensed premises concentrated in one area. For example, the potential impact on crime 
and disorder or public nuisance on a town or city centre of a large concentration of 
licensed premises in that part of the local authority area. The cumulative impact of 
licensed premises on the promotion of the licensing objectives is a proper matter for 
the Licensing Authority to consider in its policy. 

 
1.30 This Licensing Authority will have regard to the relevant paragraphs of the guidance 

issued under s.182 of the 2003 Act when determining ‘cumulative impact’. There are 
currently no cumulative impact areas within Dover District. 

 
 

Advice and Guidance 
 

1.31 The Licensing Authority recognises the valuable cultural, social and business 
importance that premises and events requiring a licence under the Licensing Act 
provide and welcomes the diversity of activities that are provided by licence holders. 
For this reason, pre-application discussions will be encouraged to assist applicants 
to develop their operating schedule to the standards the Licensing Authority will 
normally expect. The Licensing Authority, Kent Police and/or Kent Fire and Rescue 
Service will offer as much advice and guidance to applicants, as resources permit. 

 

1.32 The Licensing Authority will also seek to liaise with applicants and/or mediate between 
applicants and others who may make representations, to achieve a satisfactory 
outcome for all involved wherever possible and where resources permit. Where an 
applicant considers that representations may be likely or probable, it is recommended 
that the applicant discuss the proposal with the Licensing Authority and with those from 
whom they think representations are likely prior to submitting their application. Once 
an application has been lodged, there are statutory timescales imposed upon the 
application and determination process, which restrict 

21



7 
 

the opportunity for such discussions, liaison and mediation. 
 

Consultation 
 

1.33 There are a number of groups who have a stake in the leisure industry, including 
businesses, customers, residents and regulators, all of whom have views and concerns 
that require consideration as part of the licensing function and promotion of the licensing 
objectives. 

 
1.34 In developing this statement of policy, the Licensing Authority consulted widely. Along 

with the statutory consultees (the Chief Police Officer for the District and the Kent & 
Medway Fire and Rescue Authority) and the Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnership, 
the views of existing licence holders, businesses, voluntary groups and residents were 
also taken into account. Due consideration was given to the views of all those who 
responded to that consultation process. 

 

1.35 This Policy Statement takes effect on ***** and will remain in force for a period 
of 5 years. It will be subject to regular review by the Licensing Authority. This may lead 
to interim provisions within the five year period that would then be published in a revised 
policy statement. There will be further consultation prior to the renewal of the policy. 

 

Amusements with prizes machines 
 

1.36 The Gambling Act 2005 gives an automatic entitlement to two gaming machines of 
category C or D to the holders of premises that are licensed for the sale of alcohol for 
consumption on the premises. This automatic entitlement may be rescinded under 
certain circumstances. Notification must be given to the Licensing Authority together 
with the appropriate fee. This notification will fail when the premises licence is 
transferred to another person or ceases to have effect. Under these circumstances a 
new notification must be given to the Licensing Authority and a fee paid. 

 

1.37 Members Clubs and Miners Welfare Institutes may apply for Club Gaming and Club 
Gaming Machine permits. Commercial clubs e.g. snooker clubs and night clubs cannot 
avail themselves of these permits. 

 

Minor Variations 
 

1.38 Holders of premises licences and club premises certificates may seek minor variations 
to licences and certificates. The test as to whether such a minor variation is appropriate 
is “could this variation taken singly, or on its own, adversely affect the licensing 
objectives?” If in the view of the Licensing Authority this is the case a full variation would 
be required. 

 

1.39 A minor variation may be appropriate in cases: 
 

 Where there is a minor change to the layout of a premises that would not 
effect public safety or nuisance. 

 A reduction in the hours of operation of a premise. 

 The removal of conditions that have become obsolete due to changes in 
legislation. 

 The addition of voluntary conditions 
 

1.40 Minor variations are not permitted if the hours for the sale or supply of alcohol are 
increased or if the effect of the variation is to move the hours of alcohol to allow the 

licensable activity to be carried out between the hours of 23:00 and 07:00 on any day 
(notwithstanding that there is no increase in hours). 

22



8 
 

1.41 When determining any application for a minor variation the Licensing Authority may 
receive valid representation if made within 10 days of the application. The Authority 
must make its determination within 15 days of the application. Should the Authority fail 
to determine the application within this time it is deemed to have failed. The decision as 
to whether to allow a minor variation rests with the Licensing Authority and may only 
be challenged by way of judicial review. 

 

Designated Premises Supervisor 
 

1.42 Because of the wider impact on the community the sale of alcohol carries with it greater 
responsibility than that associated with the provision of entertainment and late night 
refreshment. The main purpose of having a Designated Premises Supervisor is to 
ensure that there is a specified individual that can be readily identified at the premises. 
The Designated Premises Supervisor therefore will occupy a pivotal role in the 
management and supervision of the premise and may be given day to day responsibility 
for running the premises. 

 

1.43 The exception to the above is to allow certain community premises which have or are 
applying for a premises licence, that authorise the sale of alcohol, to apply the 
alternative licence condition instead of the usual mandatory conditions. The effect of 
the alternative licence condition is that the licence holder, i.e. the management 
committee that runs the community premises, is responsible for the supervision and 
authorisation of all alcohol sales. However, this application of the requirement of a 
Designated Premises Supervisor may only be applied for where the Community 
Premises has a recognised Management Committee 

 

Adult Entertainment 
 

1.44 Premises that wish to provide adult entertainment by way of lap dancing, pole dancing 
or other types of activities involving nudity (relevant entertainment) are required to be 
licensed under the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 unless they 
provide such entertainment less than 11 times in any rolling year and there is at 
least one calendar month between  performances. Where this exemption applies the 
holders of authorities under the Licensing Act 2003 (premises licences, club premises 
certificates or temporary events notices) will be expected to implement measures to 
actively promote the four licensing objectives. In particular the Licensing Authority 
encourages measures that will protect children from moral, physical or mental harm. 
Such measures may include the following however this list should not be seen as being 
exhaustive or exclusive: 

 

 Measures to ensure that any adult entertainment cannot be viewed from the 
public highway or from any part of the premises not being used for adult 
entertainment. Such measures may include the screening of doors and windows 
or the screening of the stage area to reduce the field of vision in respect of the 
performance 

 A proof of age scheme where persons under the age of 18 years are required to 
provide photographic means of identification 

 The provision of door supervisors registered by the Security Industry Authority 
for the purposes of ensuring good behaviour during any performance and to 
ensure that age restrictions are complied with. 

 Measures to ensure that members of the audience are not permitted to be in 
physical contact with the performer. This may include a barrier or enforced 
sterile area immediately in front of the stage at a distance that will prevent 
contact. 

 
1.45 Where premises licences or club premises certificates have conditions attached in 

respect of regulated entertainment in the form of adult entertainment such conditions 
will remain in force unless the premises are licensed for relevant entertainment under 

23



9 
 

the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982. This is because it is 
anticipated that the conditions in respect of premises with relevant entertainment are 
likely to be stricter than those with regulated entertainment. 

 

Mandatory Conditions 
 

1.46 Alcohol-related violent crime, nuisance and disorder remain a serious problem in many 
areas in England and Wales. Those who retail or supply alcohol also have a 
responsibility to protect their customers, members, the public and communities. 

 
1.47 The Policing and Crime Act 2009 allowed the Government to impose mandatory 

conditions with regard to the responsible retailing of alcohol. These conditions must be 
intended to support and actively promote the licensing objectives. The aim of the 
mandatory conditions is to ensure that those businesses, both small and large, who are 
selling alcohol irresponsibly, act more responsibly to help tackle alcohol-related crime 
and disorder. 

 

The 2003 Act therefore provides mandatory licensing conditions that apply to all relevant 
premises in England and Wales These conditions are amended from time to time by 
Statutory Instruments. Current Mandatory Conditions can be viewed by visiting our 
website, www.dover.gov.uk/licensing policy, or requesting a copy by post. 

 
 

Early Morning Alcohol Restriction Orders (EMRO) 
 

1.48 Sections 172A to 172E of the 2003 Licensing Act 2003 allow a licensing authority to 
make, vary or revoke an EMRO. The power enables a licensing authority to prohibit 
the sale of alcohol for a specified time period between the hours of 12 midnight and 
6am in the whole or part of its area, if it is satisfied that this would be appropriate for 
the promotion of the licensing objectives. 

 
EMROs are designed to address recurring problems such as high levels of alcohol- 
related crime and disorder in specific areas at specified times; serious public nuisance; 
and other instances of alcohol-related anti-social behaviour which is not directly 
attributable to specific premises. There are currently no EMROs within Dover District. 

 
 

Reviews 
 

1.49 Where possible and appropriate the Licensing Authority, Kent Police and/or any other 
responsible authority defined by the act will give early warning to licence holders of 
any concerns identified at premises and of the need for improvement. 

 
1.50 The Licensing Act 2003 allows the Licensing Authority to reject any application for a 

review made by person other than a responsible authority, that appears to be frivolous, 
vexatious or repetitive. With this in mind no more than one review will normally be 
permitted within any 12 month period where the application relies on substantially 
similar grounds other than in exceptional and compelling circumstances or where it 
arises following a closure order. 

 

1.51 The Licensing Authority may review a licence on the application of any responsible 
authority or any other person who makes an application that relates to the licensing 
objectives. 

 

1.52 Responsible authorities and/ any other person can apply for a review of a premises 
licence, however evidentiary basis would be required to be presented to the Licensing 
Authority. Other persons are therefore advised to keep records of incidents in relation 
to licensed premises in order to support the application for review. 

24

http://www.dover.gov.uk/licensing


10 
 

Right of Appeal 
 

1.53 An appeal may be made to a magistrates’ court within 21 days of the licence holder 
being notified of the licensing authority’s decision. An appeal may be made by the 
premises licence holder, the chief officer of police and/or any other person who made 
relevant representations. 

 

1.54 The decision of the licensing authority, following the review hearing, will not have effect 
until the end of the period allowed for appeal, or until the appeal is disposed of. Any 
interim steps taken will remain in force over these periods. 

 

Enforcement 
 

1.55 The Council delivers a wide range of enforcement services aimed at safeguarding the 
environment and the community and at providing a ‘level playing field’ on which 
businesses can fairly trade. The administration and enforcement of the licensing regime 
is one of these services. The Council has adopted the principles of the Government’s 
Enforcement Concordat designed to ensure effective and efficient public protection 
services. Specifically, the Council is committed to accord with the principles of good 
enforcement practice by carrying out its regulatory functions in a fair, open and 
consistent manner. 

 
1.56 The Enforcement Concordat is based on the principles that businesses should: 

 

 receive clear explanations from enforcers of what they need to do and by 
when; 

 have opportunities to resolve differences before enforcement action is taken - 
unless immediate action is needed; 

 receive an explanation of their rights of appeal 
 

1.57 The Council recognises the interests of both individual citizens and the requirements 
of businesses and will work closely with partners to assist licence holders to comply 
with the law and the four licensing objectives it seeks to promote. However, 
proportionate but firm action will be taken against those who commit offences or break 
the law. The Council has set clear standards of service and performance that the public 
and businesses can expect. In particular, a licensing enforcement policy has been 
created that explains how the Council will undertake its role as Licensing Authority and 
how the principles of effective enforcement will be achieved. The policy is available 
from the Licensing Section as are details of the Council’s corporate complaints 
procedures. These documents can also be viewed on the Council’s website: 
www.dover.gov.uk/licensing 

 

1.58 The Licensing Authority has established protocols with Kent Police, Kent & Medway 
Towns Fire and Rescue Authority and Kent County Council Trading Standards on 
enforcement issues. These protocols provide for the targeting of resources towards 
high-risk premises and activities that require greater attention, while providing a lighter 
touch in respect of low risk premises that are well operated. 

 

1.59 The principle of using a scoring scheme based on risk factors will normally prevail and 
proactive inspections will usually be undertaken in accordance with a priority 

inspection scheme. This should ensure that resources are more effectively allocated to 
higher risk or ‘problem premises’. Monitoring visits will also take place in and around 
premises. 

 

 

2.1 The following sections set out the Licensing Authority’s Policy relating specifically to 

2.0 LICENSING OBJECTIVES 

25

http://www.dover.gov.uk/licensing


11 
 

the four licensing objectives: 
 

 The prevention of crime and disorder 

 Public safety 

 The prevention of public nuisance 

 The protection of children from harm 
 

2.2 Any other person or responsible authority may make representation on any application 
or seek a review of a licence or certificate where they are permitted to so under the 
Act. Each application will be considered on its individual merits as well as against the 
relevant policy and statutory framework. 

 
2.3 If no representations are received from responsible authorities or other persons, the 

licence will be granted as applied for subject only to mandatory conditions and those 
conditions that are consistent with the operating schedule that is required to be 
submited as part of the application. 

 

2.4 Where relevant representations are made, the Licensing Authority may attach 
conditions to the licence where they are   considered appropriate for the promotion 
of the licensing objectives. They will be tailored to the individual style and 
characteristics of the particular premises and events concerned. 

 

2.5 In each section relating to the objectives, the Licensing Authority has defined its 
intended outcome. Each section then lists the factors that may influence the 
achievement of that objective but because of the wide variety of premises and activities 
to which this policy applies, the lists provided are not exhaustive or exclusive. 
Applicants know their premises and business best and should address all aspects 
relevant to the individual style and characteristics of their premises and events. 

 

2.6 Further, in each section, a list of possible control measures is provided. This is to be 
of assistance to applicants, but again is not intended to be an exclusive or exhaustive 
list. Many control measures achieve more than one objective but have not necessarily 
been listed under each objective. Applicants will not be required to mention a control 
measure more than once in their operating schedule. 

 

2.7 The Licensing Authority will expect the selection of control measures, referred to in 
2.6 above, to be based upon a risk assessment of the premises, events, activities and 
the customers expected to attend (eg. their age, number, etc.). Whilst the Licensing 
Authority may not require such risk assessments to be documented, (other than where 
required by other legislation), it considers such documentation to be good practice and 
a useful tool in the instruction and training of staff. It is also a sound basis for review 
by the licence holder, in the event of an application for variation, or a response to 
changing circumstances/conditions at the premises being required. The Licensing 
Authority also encourages the maintenance of training records to evidence the 
promotion of the licensing objectives. 

 

2.8 Additional measures may be necessary on a specific basis such as when a special 
event (e.g. popular live band) or promotion (e.g. during major sporting occasions) is 
planned, and which is intended to, or likely to attract larger audiences and/or audiences 
of a different nature, and which can have a significant impact on the achievement of the 
licensing objectives. 

 

2.9 The Licensing Authority considers the effective and responsible management of the 
premises, instruction, training and supervision of staff and the adoption of best practice 
to be the most essential of control measures for the achievement of all the licensing 
objectives. Applicants are encouraged to consider and address such elements within 
an applicant’s operating schedule. 

26



12 
 

2.10 Occupancy capacity for premises may be a relevant factor in promoting the four 
licensing objectives. 

 

2.11 The design and layout of premises are important in determining capacity, as is the 
availability and size of exits within recommended travel distances. Other factors should 
also be considered when assessing the appropriate capacity for premises or events. 
These might include: 

 

 The nature of the premises or event 

 The nature of the licensable activities being provided 

 The provision or removal of such items as temporary structures, such as a 
stage, or furniture 

 The number of staff available to supervise customers both ordinarily and in 
the event of an emergency 

 The customer profile (e.g. age, disability) 

 The attendance by customers with disabilities and means of emergency exit 
for such customers 

 The attendance by customers with whose first language is not English 

 Availability of suitable and sufficient sanitary accommodation 

 Nature and provision of facilities for ventilation 
 
 

 

3.1 Dover District Council is committed to further improving the quality of life for the people 
of the District of Dover by continuing to reduce crime and the fear of crime. 

 

3.2 Whilst the Community Safety Partnership is not a responsible authority under the 
Licensing Act 2003, the Licensing Authority will consult and involve the Community 
Safety Partnership in policy making in order to maximise the effectiveness of reducing 
crime, misuse of drugs and the fear of crime. 

 
3.3 Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 introduced a wide range of measures 

for preventing crime and disorder and imposed a duty on Dover District Council, Kent 
Police, Kent County Council and others to consider crime and disorder reduction in the 
exercise of all their duties. The Licensing Act 2003 reinforces this duty for local 
authorities. 

 

3.4 The promotion of the licensing objective, “prevention of crime and disorder”, places a 
responsibility on licence holders to become key partners in achieving this objective. 
Applicants should demonstrate in their operating schedule that suitable and sufficient 
measures have been identified, and will be implemented and maintained, to reduce 
or prevent crime and disorder on and in the vicinity of their premises, relevant to the 
individual style and characteristics of their premises and events. 

 
3.5 The applicant should consider factors arising from the premises or the activities of their 

customers within the vicinity of the premises, and are encouraged to demonstrate 
consideration of factors that may impact on the prevention of crime and disorder 
objective. These might include: 

 
 Underage drinking
 Drunkenness on premises
 Public drunkenness
 D rugs
 Violent behaviour
 Anti-social behaviour

3.0 PREVENTION OF CRIME AND DISORDER 

27



13 
 

3.6 The following examples of control measures are given to assist applicants and are 
considered to be amongst the most essential that applicants should take account of 
in their operating schedule, having regard to their particular type of premises and/or 
activities: 

 

 Effective and responsible management of premises.
 Training and supervision of staff including the maintenance of training records.

 Adoption of best practice guidance (e.g. Safer Clubbing the National Alcohol 
Harm Reduction Strategy Toolkit and other voluntary codes of practice.

 Membership of the Dover Partnership Against Crime (DPAC).
 Acceptance of accredited ‘proof of age’ cards for example “Citizen Card” and/or 

‘new type’ driving licences with photographs, passports, an official identity card 
issued by H M Forces.

 Provision of effective CCTV in and around premises.
 Employment of Security Industry Authority licensed door staff. Such door staff 

should be at a ratio set down by the Security Industry Authority (currently 
1:100 patrons) The employment of female staff as part of such door supervision 
arrangements is encouraged.

 Provision of toughened or polycarbonate glasses.
 Provision of litterbins and security measures, such as lighting, outside premises.
 Membership of a Pub Watch scheme.

 

3.7 Applicants should carefully consider the hours that they will wish to operate and when 
to close their premises for the entry of customers and to require them to leave. They 
should consider each licensable activity separately and carefully and reflect this in 
operating schedules. The Licensing Authority will similarly consider hours for licensable 
activities and closing times and appropriate conditions. The benefits of “cooling down” 
periods; after the last sales of alcoholic drinks; while food and non alcoholic drinks are 
still available; and when they volume and tempo of music is reduced, and the levels of 
lighting are increased, are very widely recognised as helping to reduce crime and 
disorder and public nuisance. Applicants should consider the benefits of stopping 
serving alcohol well before other licensable activities stop or more than half an hour 
before the premises close and customers must leave. They should consider stopping 
playing music or dancing before they stop serving alcohol and food to customers in 
very noise sensitive areas. 

 
3.8 Within the operating schedule for premises from which alcohol will be sold, a Designated 

Premises Supervisor (DPS) must be identified and named. The DPS should have been 
given the day-to-day responsibility for running the premises by the premises licence 
holder. In addition to the DPS holding a personal licence, the Licensing Authority will 
expect where serious crime or disorder has previously been experienced on those 
premises, the DPS to have additional training and/or experience commensurate with 
the nature and style of the operation of the premises. 

 
3.9 In exceptional circumstances, the police may object to the designation of a new 

premises supervisor where they believe that such appointment would undermine the 
crime prevention objective. 

 

3.10 Certain temporary events are not required to be licensed but must be notified to the 
Licensing Authority, Police and Environmental Health using the Temporary Event Notice 
(TEN) or Late TEN procedure. However, depending on the nature and location of such 
events, these can have serious crime and disorder implications. Organisers of these 
events must submit their notification at least 10 working days (or 5 working days in 
respect of “late” TENS) before the event to enable the police, environmental health 
and the Licensing Authority to work with them to identify and reduce the risk of crime 
and disorder. 

28



14 
 

3.11 Where the Licensing Authority has given notice in writing to the holder of the premises 
licence prohibiting the exhibition of a film (including DVD or video) on the grounds that 
it contains matter which, if exhibited, would be likely to: 

 

 encourage or incite crime or lead to disorder, or

 stir up hatred or incite violence towards any section of the public on grounds 
of colour, race or ethnic or racial origin, disability, religious beliefs, sexual 
orientation or gender

 

the Licensing Authority will expect that the film shall not be exhibited in the premises 
except with the consent in writing of the Licensing Authority and in accordance with any 
conditions attached to such consent. 

 

3.12 The Licensing Authority will require all films to comply with British Board of Film 
Classification (BBFC) guidelines. 

 
3.13 Whilst each application is considered on its merits, the provision of door supervisors 

in town centre pubs and clubs that wish to sell alcohol beyond 11.00pm is encouraged. 
The Security Industry Authority’s policy is that one door supervisor must be employed 
for every 100 people likely to be present on the premises. The Licensing Authority may 
liaise with the designated premises supervisor as to the days of the week when such 
staff need to be employed. 

 

4.0 PUBLIC SAFETY  
 

4.1 The Licensing Authority is committed to ensuring that the safety of any person visiting 
or working in licensed premises is not compromised. To this end, applicants are 
encouraged to demonstrate in their operating schedule that suitable and sufficient 
measures have been identified and will be implemented and maintained to ensure 
public safety, relevant to the individual style and characteristics of their premises and 
events. 

 

4.2 When addressing the issue of public safety, an applicant should demonstrate that those 
factors that impact on the standards of public safety have been considered. These may 
include: 

 

 The occupancy capacity of the premises (notwithstanding the provisions of the 
Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005) in particular having regard to 
means of escape in an emergency. 

 The age, design and layout of the premises, including means of escape in the 
event of fire. 

 The nature of the licensable activities to be provided, in particular the sale or 
supply of alcohol, and including whether those activities are of a temporary or 
permanent nature. 

 The hours of operation, noting the difference between opening hours and the 
hours of licensable activities (wind down periods). 

 Customer profile (e.g. age, disability). 

 The use of special effects such as lasers, pyrotechnics, smoke machines, foam 
machines, etc. 

 

4.3 The Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 places a responsibility on the licence 
holder to carry out a risk assessment and appoint a competent person. This risk 
assessment should include a maximum capacity limit taking into account the activities 
undertaken on those premises and any extenuating circumstances such as special 
effects, clientele, or restricted access 

 

4.4 The following examples of control measures are given to assist applicants and are 

29



15 
 

considered to be amongst the most essential that applicants should take account of 
in their operating schedule, having regard to their particular type of premises and/or 
activities: 

 

 Suitable and sufficient risk assessments. 

 Effective and responsible management of premises. 

 Provision of a sufficient number of people employed or engaged to secure the 
safety of the premises and patrons. 

 Appropriate instruction, training and supervision of those employed or 
engaged to secure the safety of the premises and patrons. 

 Adoption of best practice guidance. 

 Provision of effective CCTV in and around premises. 

 Provision of toughened or polycarbonate glasses. 

 Implementation of crowd management measures. 

 Regular testing (and   certification where appropriate) of procedures, 
appliances, systems etc. pertinent to safety. 

 

5.0 PREVENTION OF PUBLIC NUISANCE  
 

5.1 Licensed premises have a significant potential to adversely impact on communities 
through public nuisances that arise from their operation. The Licensing Authority 
wishes to proactively maintain and protect the amenity of residents and other 
businesses from the potential consequence of the operation of licensed premises whilst 
recognising the valuable cultural, social and business importance that such premises 
provide. 

 
5.2 The Licensing Authority will interpret ‘public nuisance’ in its widest sense, and takes it 

to include such issues as noise, light, odour, litter and anti-social behaviour, where 
these matters impact on those living, working or otherwise engaged in normal activity 
in an area. 

 
5.3 Applicants need to clearly understand that the Licensing Authority will not normally look 

to imposing stricter conditions, including controls on licensing hours, where licensed 
premises are in residential areas. It is the view of Dover District Council that all parts 
of the District are to be considered residential areas to some degree and that no stricter 
conditions would be imposed in residential areas. 

 

5.4 In the case of shops, stores and supermarkets and garages selling alcohol, the 
Licensing Authority will normally permit the hours during which alcohol is sold to match 
the normal trading hours during which other sales take place, unless there are valid 
reasons relating to any of the licensing objectives which justify restricting hours of 
opening. 

 

5.5 Applicants should demonstrate in their operating schedule that suitable and sufficient 
measures to prevent public nuisance have been identified and will be implemented , 
relevant to the individual style and characteristics of their premises and events. 

 

5.6 When addressing the issue of prevention of public nuisance, the applicant should 
demonstrate that those factors that impact on the likelihood of public nuisance have 
been considered. These may include: 

 

 The location of premises and proximity to residential and other noise sensitive 
premises, such as hospitals, hospices and places of worship. 

 The hours of operation, particularly if between 23.00 and 07.00. 

 The nature of activities to be provided, including whether those activities are 
of a temporary or permanent nature and whether they are to be held inside or 
outside premises. 

 The design and layout of premises and in particular the presence of noise 

30



16 
 

limiting features. 

 The occupancy capacity of the premises. 

 The availability of public transport. 

 Last admission time. 

 The steps the applicant has taken or proposes to take to ensure that staff 
leave the premises quietly. 

 The steps the applicant has taken or proposes to take to prevent disturbance 
by patrons arriving or leaving the premises. 

 Whether routes to and from the premises, on foot or by car or service or 
delivery vehicles, pass residential premises. 

 Whether other measures have been taken or are proposed such as the use of 
CCTV or the employment of registered door supervisors. 

 The arrangements made or proposed for parking by patrons, and the effect of 
this parking on local residents. 

 The likelihood of any violence, disorder or policing problems arising if a 
licence were to be granted. 

 Whether taxis and private hire vehicles serving the premises are likely to 
disturb local residents. 

 The siting of external lighting, including security lighting. 

 Whether the premises would result in increased refuse storage or disposal 
problems or additional litter in the vicinity of the premise and any measures or 
proposed measures to deal with this. 

 The history of previous nuisance complaints proven against the premises, 
particularly where statutory notices have been served on the present licensees. 

 
5.7 The following examples of control measures are given to assist applicants and are 

considered to be amongst the most essential that applicants should take account of 
in their operating schedule, having regard to their particular type of premises and/or 
activities: 

 
 Effective and responsible management of premises. 

 Appropriate instruction, training and supervision of those employed or 
engaged to prevent incidents of public nuisance. 

 Control of operating hours for all or individual parts of the premises 
(e.g. garden areas), including such matters as deliveries, bottle clearing etc. 

 Adoption of best practice guidance (e.g. Good Practice Guide on the Control 
of Noise from Pubs and Clubs, produced by Institute of Acoustics). 

 Installation of soundproofing, air conditioning, acoustic lobbies and sound 
limitation devices. 

 Management of people, including staff, and traffic (and resulting queues) 
arriving and leaving premises. 

 Liaison with public transport providers. 

 Siting of external lighting, including security lighting. 

 Management arrangements for collection and disposal of litter. 

 Effective ventilation systems to prevent nuisance from odour. 
 

6.0 PROTECTION OF CHILDREN FROM HARM  
 

6.1 Applicants should demonstrate in their operating schedule that suitable and sufficient 
measures have been identified and will be implemented and maintained to protect 
children from harm, relevant to the individual style and characteristics of their premises 
and events. 

 
6.2 The protection of children from harm is an important issue. It is hoped that family 

friendly premises will thrive, but the risk of harm to children remains a paramount 
consideration when determining applications. 

31



17 
 

6.3 The relaxation of previous restrictions contained in the Licensing Act 1964 giving 
accompanied children greater access to licensed premises is seen as a positive step, 
which may bring about a social change in family friendly leisure. Clearly, this relaxation 
places additional responsibilities upon licence holders. However, it is recognised that 
parents and others accompanying children also have responsibilities. 

 

6.4 The protection of children from harm includes the protection of children from moral, 
psychological and physical harm and, in relation to the exhibition of films, or the 
transmission of programmes by video or DVD. This includes the protection of children 
from exposure to strong language, sexual imagery and sexual expletives. Children are 
more vulnerable and their needs will require special consideration. This vulnerability 
includes their susceptibility to suggestion, peer group influences, inappropriate 
example, and the unpredictability of their age and the lack of understanding of danger. 

 

6.5 Whilst children may be adequately protected from harm by the action taken to protect 
adults, they also need special consideration and no policy can anticipate every situation. 
When addressing the issue of protecting children from harm, the applicant should 
demonstrate that those factors that impact on harm to children have been considered. 
The potential for children to be exposed to the following should all be considered and 
addressed: 

 

 Purchase, acquire or consume alcohol

 Be exposed to drugs, drug taking or drug dealing

 Be exposed to gambling

 Be exposed to activities of an adult or sexual nature

 Be exposed to incidents of violence or disorder

 Be exposed to environmental pollution such as noise or smoke

 Be exposed to special hazards such as falls from a height
 

6.6 The following examples of control measures are given to assist applicants and are 
considered to be amongst the most essential that applicants should take account of in 
their operating schedule, having regard to their particular type of premises and/or 
activities: 

 

 Effective and responsible management of premises.
 Provision of a sufficient number of people employed or engaged to secure the 

protection of children from harm.
 Appropriate instruction, training and supervision of those employed or 

engaged to secure the protection of children from harm.
 Adoption of best practice guidance.
 Limitations on the hours when children may be present, in all or individual 

parts of the premises.
 Limitations or exclusions by age when certain activities are taking place.
 Imposition of requirements for children to be accompanied by an adult.
 Acceptance of accredited ‘proof of age’ cards for example Citizens Card” 

and/or ‘photocard type driving licences with photographs, passport, an official 
identity card issued by HM Forces or by a EU country bearing the photograph 
and date of birth of bearer.

 The placing of machines provided under the Gambling Act 2005 so that they 
can be properly supervised.

 

6.7 In the case of film exhibitions, the Licensing Authority will expect licensees to implement 
measures that restrict children from viewing age-restricted films classified according to 
the recommendations of the BBFC or the Licensing Authority. In the case of a film 
exhibition that has not been classified, the Licensing Authority will expect the licensee 
to certify to the Licensing Authority that an assessment of the suitability of the film for 
exhibition to children in accordance with the BBFC Guidelines 

32



18 
 

has been carried out and that this has been confirmed by the Licensing Authority in 
writing prior to public viewing. Details of the BBFC Guidelines are available on the Dover 
District Council website Licensing Page. 

 

6.8 Where certain regulated entertainment is provided the Licensing Authority will require 
the presence of an adequate number of adult staff to control the access and egress of 
children and to protect them from harm whilst on the premises. Where children are 
present as performers, the Licensing Authority will normally require an adequate 
number of adult staff to be responsible for the child performers. The staff should be 
suitably screened to work with children. 

 
6.9 The Licensing Authority will rarely impose complete bans on access by children. In 

exceptional circumstances, and only where the Licensing Authority has received 
relevant representations, conditions restricting access or excluding children completely 
may be considered necessary. Those conditions may restrict children from entering 
all or part of licensed premises: 

 

(1) at certain times of the day or 
(2) when certain licensable activities are taking place or 
(3) to which children aged under 16 years should have access only when 

supervised by an adult or 
(4) to which unsupervised children under 16 will be permitted access 

 
6.10 Examples of premises where these conditions may be considered include where: 

 
(1) there have been convictions for serving alcohol to minors or where there is 

some evidence of under-age drinking 
(2) there is a known association with drug taking or dealing 
(3) there is a strong element of gambling on the premises 
(4) entertainment of an adult or sexual nature is commonly provided 
(5) there is a presumption that children under 18 should not be allowed (e.g. to 

nightclubs, except where under 18 discos are being held) 
(6) licensable activities are taking place during times when children under 16 may 

be expected to be attending compulsory full-time education. 
(7) there is evidence or convictions for permitting drunkenness and/or binge 

drinking 

33



19 
 

Appendix A The District of 
Dover 

Situated in East Kent, the Dover district covers 31,485 hectares and has a coastline of around 20 miles. 
The district contains two urban areas, a market town and a large rural area made up of dozens of villages 
and hamlets. 

 
The Dover district has a population of 113,100 (2014 ONS Mid-Year Population Estimates), which is 
comprised of the following broad age groups: 

 

 0-14 years: 18,600 (16.4%)

 15-19 years: 6,900 (6.1%)

 20-29 years: 11,800 (10.4%)

 30-59 years: 43,000 (38.0%)

 60-74 years: 21,500 (19.0%)

 75+ years: 11,200 (9.9%)

 

The average age of residents living in the Dover district is 42.8 years, which is higher than the national 
mean age of 39.6 years. 

 

About 72% of the population live in the towns of Dover, Deal and Sandwich. The remainder of the district 
is predominately rural, although there are plans for managed expansion at Whitfield (at least 5,750 homes) 
and Aylesham (over 1,200 homes). 

 
The Dover district is steeped in history. Sandwich and Dover are both Cinque Ports and Deal is a member 
of the Confederation. The district contains the spectacular Norman Castle at Dover, the Tudor castles of 
Deal and Walmer and the Roman castle at Richborough. Sandwich is the most complete medieval town 
in Britain and Deal is noted for its Georgian seafront. 

 
There are a range of sports and leisure facilities on offer in the district including leisure centres, swimming 
pools, country parks and gardens, play areas, cinemas, theatres and museums. The district is famous for 
its golf courses including the Royal St. George’s in Sandwich, which has hosted the Open Championship. 

 
The economy of the Dover district is closely linked with the Port of Dover and ancillary activities, although 
there are other sources of employment including construction and accommodation & food services. The 
decision by the pharmaceutical company Pfizers to contract its operations significantly at Sandwich led to 
the designation of the site by the Government as an Enterprise Zone, renamed ‘Discovery Park’, and life 
science is a core activity at the site. 

 
There is a range of retail facilities available to residents within the urban areas of the district although these 
tend to be local rather than regional shopping facilities. Progress is being made on delivering a multi-
million pound ‘St James’ development (Dover Town Investment Zone), a 120,000 sq. ft. retail and leisure 
park with 440 parking spaces, and will feature a 21,000 sq. ft. six-screen multiplex Cineworld cinema, 120 
bed hotel, 16,000 sq. ft. M&S Simply Food store, five national chain restaurants and 12 retail units. 

 

Some 402 commercial outlets now offer licensable activities including, pubs, clubs, off licences, public 
entertainment establishments and late night refreshment houses. 

 
Crime statistics for the year 2013/14 show a violent crime rate of 16.5 crimes per 1,000 people1 
compared to 11.1 per 1000 nationally. 

 
1 Crude rate per 1,000 population. During this period, the Kent Police system for recording crime was scrutinised by 
HM Inspectorate of Constabulary and as a result, the reporting mechanisms have been tightened and improved 
leading to an increase in reported crime. Waiting for 2014/15 data. 

 
 
 

34



20 
 

 
 
 

Campaign for Real Ale Limited 
Chairman Licensing Committee  
Chief Constable, Kent Constabulary  
Deal, Walmer & Sandwich LVA 
Dover District Chamber of Commerce 
Dover Harbour Board 
Dover Library 
Dover Partnership Against Crime 
Dover Town Centre Management 
East Kent Coastal Primary Care Trust  
Fire Safety Officer - Kent Fire & Rescue 
Service , South Kent Office 
KCC Children's Services, Dover 
KCC Social Services (Asylum Team 
KCC Social Services (Child Protection)  
Kent Association of Parish Councils 

 

Kent County Council 
Kent Hotels & Restaurants Association 
Kent Magistrates' Court Service 
Kent Rural Community Council 
Kent Transport 
LGS (UK) 
Priory Forum  
Sandwich & District Chamber of Commerce 
Sandwich Society 
The Association of Licensed Multiple 
Retailers 
The National Trust 
Town and Parish Councils  
White Cliffs Country Tourism Association 
Group 

 

Whilst the above persons and organisations have been directly consulted this does not 
prevent anyone other person or body responding to this consultation. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Further copies are freely available from: 

Rebecca Pordage, Licensing Manager 
Licensing Policy Consultation 
Dover District Council White Cliffs 
Business Park Dover Kent CT16 3PJ 
Telephone: 01304 872279 or by 
fax: 01304872217 
or by e-mail: licensing@dover.gov.uk 

 

Appendix B 

35

mailto:licensing@dover.gov.uk


21 
 

 

 
 

Licensing Act 2003: Guidance issued under Section 182 and Guidance on the Operation of 

Closure Powers in Part 8 

 
Home Office Alcohol and Crime Research Page 

Home Office Guidance for Local Agencies 

British Institute of Innkeeping (Bll) 

Safety Guidance for Street Arts, Carnival, Processions and Large Scale Performances 

published by Independent Street Arts Network 

 
Home Office Race Relations Guidance 

Disability Rights Commission 

Home Office's Updated Drug Strategy and "Safer Clubbing" 

 
"Alcohol and Crime: Taking Stock" by Anne Deehan, Home Office Crime Reduction 

Research Series Paper 3 

 
Crime Reduction - Enforcement Strategy 

Crime Reduction Strategy 2002-2005 

Dover District Local Plan 

Race Equality Policy 

Community Strategy 

Dover District Council Corporate Plan 

Appendix C - Other Relevant Contacts, Strategies 

and Policies 

36

http://www.streetartsnetwork.org/pages/publications


Questions Raised on Notice by Members 

 

(a) To Chairmen/Vice-Chairmen of Committees 

 

 There were no questions received for Chairmen/Vice-Chairmen of Committees. 

 

 

(b) To the Executive 

 

 To receive answers in respect of questions from Members of the Council to a 

Member of the Executive asked in accordance with Rule 12 of the Council Procedure 

Rules. 

 

(1) Councillor N J Collor will ask the Portfolio Holder for Transport, Licensing and 

Regulatory Services, Councillor M Bates: 

“As the annual review of parking charges period approaches will the Portfolio 

Holder kindly advise whether or not suggested car parking charges in rural 

areas will be included this year?” 

 

(2) Councillor N J Collor will ask the Portfolio Holder for Transport, Licensing and 

Regulatory Services, Councillor M Bates: 

“A recent press release on the future of the Stembrook area of Dover had, in 

the final comments, reference to future plans to improve Pencester Gardens.  

Since the 1920s this green open space in the centre of the town has always 

been extremely popular with residents, particularly the younger ones, and 

even more so, since the strategic play area and the skate park have been 

added. 

Will the Leader of the Council confirm to me and fellow Dover residents that 

the play area and the skate park area, especially as the latter is now an 

Olympic event, will be included within the future plans?” 

 

(3) Councillor P M Brivio will ask the Portfolio Holder for Transport, Licensing and 

Regulatory Services, Councillor M Bates: 

“Have any approaches been made to P and O about the reintroduction of the 

transport link from the Priory station to the Docks particularly as foot 

passenger services have been re started?” 

 

(4) Councillor P M Brivio will ask the Leader of the Council, Councillor T J 

Bartlett: 

37

Agenda Item No 11



“Did KCC in their request for financial assistance in April towards the 

refurbishment of Discovery Centre mention that the refurbishment would 

result in the loss of the very popular Roundhouse Theatre?” 

 

(5) Councillor C D Zosseder will ask the Portfolio Holder for Community and 

Corporate Property, Councillor O C de R Richardson: 

“If the Portfolio Holder for Community and Corporate Property can tell me if 

we have plans to apply to the £30.5m booster fund for Tennis Courts (recently 

announced) to refurbish the public tennis courts at Connaught Park and 

Russell Gardens?” 

 

(6) Councillor E A Biggs will ask the Leader of the Council, Councillor T J Bartlett: 

“Why the Leader felt it necessary to speak in support of the proposed 

Cottingham Park Development by Quinn Estates, when this site is not 

allocated or supported by the planning Department of DDC?” 

 

(7) Councillor H M Williams will ask the Portfolio Holder for Community and 

Corporate Property, Councillor O C de R Richardson: 

“How many pocket parks and play areas have been closed over the past 10 

years?”  

 

(8) Councillor H M Williams will ask the Portfolio Holder for Community and 

Corporate Property, Councillor O C de R Richardson: 

“We know that the draft local plan has a Topic Paper on Open spaces, which 

includes green spaces and play areas, but these plans are for the long-term 

future and depend to a large extent on S106 money from new developments.   

I am interested in the needs of children in older residential areas, especially in 

these stressed post Covid times.   So, are there plans for Capital Spending in 

this type of area in next year’s budget?” 

 

(9) Councillor S H Beer will ask the Portfolio Holder for Finance, Governance, 

Digital and Climate Change, Councillor C A Vinson: 

“Having declared a Climate Change Emergency in January 2020 is it now 
time for us to take a more responsible approach and adopt an ethical 
investment policy by January 2021? 
 
At present, policy seems to be simply to maximise returns and sustain values. 

We do not have a policy which takes into account the impact of our 

investment choices on society and the planet.” 

 

38



(10) Councillor H M Williams will ask the Portfolio Holder for Community and 

Corporate Property, Councillor O C de R Richardson: 

“Coming out of the pandemic, many local children have suffered from social 

isolation and health problems including obesity and mental health problems. 

Could the council explore play schemes for all the school holidays, based at 

leisure centres as they used to do some years ago, to help reduce inequalities 

and improve health and wellbeing?“ 

 

(11) Councillor H M Williams will ask the Leader of the Council, Councillor T J 

Bartlett: 

“We note that after the last full council meeting, the leader of DDC wrote a 

letter to the relevant government minister requesting that the temporary £20 

per week uplift in Universal Credit should be retained until such time as a 

review is completed, to provide continued support to those in hardship due to 

Covid.  Could we please all see the answer received?” 

 

(12) Councillor H M Williams will ask the Leader of the Council, Councillor T J 

Bartlett: 

“July figures for Universal Credit, from KCC, show that there were 11,174 UC 

claimants in the Dover area, which with the cut of £20 per week amounts to a 

cut of £223,480 per week in spending power or £11 1/2 million annually.  That 

is a big loss to the area and individuals. Therefore could the Leader advise 

council of the details of Household Support fund set up for UC claimants in 

dire need?”   

 

(13) Councillor K Mills will ask the Leader of the Council, Councillor T J Bartlett: 

“Following the circulation of the Climate and Ecological Emergency Bill 

(private members bill) currently going through parliament. Is the leader 

prepared to go on record with his support for the Bill recognising the impact 

climate change is having on the Planet and the Ecological system on behalf of 

the Residents of this District?“ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

39



Motions on Notice by Members 

 

(1) In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 13, Councillor K Mills will 
move: 

This Council Meeting notes that 

 ONS figures show that almost one in three women aged 16-59 will 

experience domestic abuse in their lifetime, that two women a week in 

England and Wales are killed by a current or former partner, that over half 

a million women are raped or sexually assaulted each year and that a 

YouGov poll shows that a third of girls have experienced sexual 

harassment in schools; 

 the global pandemic has led to more women and girls being vulnerable to 

domestic abuse and, according to a BBC news report last July, the initial 

three months of the first national lockdown saw an 80% increase in calls to 

the National Domestic Abuse Hotline; 

 that, according to crime-survey and other government data, victims 

disproportionately come from those groups which already experience 

inequality and additional challenges in our society, including those who are 

mixed-race, have disabilities, or are transgender; and 

 as we reflect on the end of the delayed EUFA Euro 2020 tournament, 

previous research by Lancaster University showed that reported domestic 

abuse incidents increase whenever any of the home nations play in a 

major tournament, and the effect is particularly large on the days when 

those teams lose. 

This Council Meeting further notes that 

 White Ribbon UK is the leading charity with a mission to end male violence 

against women and part of the global White Ribbon movement which 

arose from a campaign started by men in Canada in 2004; 

 they mark White Ribbon Day annually on 25th November, the International 

Day for the Eradication of Violence Against Women, by encouraging men 

and boys to pledge never to take part in, condone or stay silent about 

violence against women and to make this by wearing a white ribbon on the 

day and a week or two afterwards; and 

 White Ribbon UK operate a system of male Ambassadors, female 

Champions and Youth Advocates, as well as having specific materials to 

support primary and secondary schools, all with the aim of encouraging 

men to take the pledge and help to eradicate male violence against 

women. 

 This Council Meeting believes male violence against women can never be 

condoned and Dover District Council should do everything in its power to 

ensure women are safe.  As part of this, the council should facilitate and 

40

Agenda Item No 12



encourage participation by councillors, staff and schools in the White 

Ribbon Campaign. 

This Council Meeting therefore resolves to 

 encourage all male Councillors to take the White Ribbon pledge, never to 

take part in, condone or stay silent about violence against women; 

 undertake as soon as practicable the steps necessary to achieve White 

Ribbon accreditation, joining the large number of public sector bodies 

which have already done so; and 

 as part of this, appoint a male Councillor as an Ambassador; mark White 

Ribbon Day on 25th November each year with a fundraising event; and 

encourage participation among council staff and local primary and 

secondary schools.  

 

 

41



URGENT BUSINESS 

 
 
To consider any other items deemed by the Chairman of the Council to be urgent in 
accordance with the Local Government Act 1972. 
 

42

Agenda Item No 13


	Agenda
	1 Apologies
	3 Declarations of Interest
	4 Announcements
	5 Leader's Time
	6 Seat Allocation and Group Appointments
	7 Questions from the Public
	9 Review of Statement of Licensing Policy - Licensing Act 2003
	Draft Licensing Policy 2022 - 2027

	11 Questions from Members
	12 Motions
	13 Urgent Business Time

